
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 08, 2019 

SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING  

5:00 PM 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 
2020 Budget  

Executive Session - Staffing 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
1. Visitors & Guests 

2. Paonia Streetlights 

 DMEA 

 Dark Skies Paonia 

 

Consent Agenda 

3. Regular Minutes September 27, 2019 

 Permanent Modification of Premise - Paonia Liquors LLC 

Mayor’s Report 
4. Recognition for Service - Trustee Hart 

5. Procedure for Filling Vacant Trustee Seat 

Staff Reports 
6. Administrator’s Report 

7. Modification of Mapping RFP to Asset Inventory RFP 

8. Recommendation for Back-flow Device Testing 

9. Public Works Report 

10. Police Report 

11. Treasurer’s Report 

Disbursements 
12. Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 

New Business 
13. Delta County Libraries Presentation Regarding Ballot Issue 7A 

14. DeHerrera Minor Subdivision – 115 North Fork Avenue 

15. Western Slope Conservation Center – Great Outdoors Colorado – Grant Support 

 Resolution 2019-13- Paonia River Park Community Access Project 

16. Citizen Initiative - Water Tap Sale Moratorium 

Committee Reports 

1



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

17. Finance & Personnel 

18. Town Administrator Hiring Calendar  

19. Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

20. Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

21. Space 2 Create 

22. Executive Session - To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or 

other property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a) - Specific to Acquisition of Property 

23. Tree Board 

Adjournment 
24. Adjournment 

 

  

2



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the Mayor 

without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall address 

Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific (i.e.: Mr., 

Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board Members shall 

be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or making a 

suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer before 

speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and any group 

they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or presiding 

officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda item or issue(s) 

under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and personal attacks. 

3



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided in 

the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a Consent 

Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to action 

by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or explained 

and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but not limited 

to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval of liquor 

licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-material Scribner 

errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there is a material error 

in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately either 

immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken by 

the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in the 

open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the Board 

to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible without 

compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more than one 

of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the announcement 

of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into executive session, 

there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are subject 

to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of executive 

session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that session or 

with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential unless a 

majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  

4



 

October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Budget 2020 Special Meeting 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

5



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION FORM 
(Note:  2/3 quorum present must vote yes; the session may only occur at a regular or special meeting of the body) 

 

 

I MOVE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

(if the stated purpose of the executive session is legal advice, do not combine it with any other 

purpose): 

 

 For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on 

specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); 

 

 For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 

negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e); 

 

 To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other 

property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a); 

 

 For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not 

involving: any specific employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open 

session; any member of this body or any elected official; the appointment of any person 

to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or personnel policies that do not 

require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees; 

 

 For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or 

state law, rule or regulation: __________________ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c); 

 

 For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(d); 

 

 For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory non-disclosure provisions of 

the Open Records Act under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g); 

 

 Other (specify):______________________________________________ 

 

Specific 

to:____________________________________________________________________for 

identification purposes only. 

6



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

7



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Agenda Approval 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

8



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

9



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

10

1.



 

October 3, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Paonia Streetlights 

 DMEA 

 Dark Skies Paonia 

Summary:   

The Town has carried forward a line item for streetlights in the amount of $25,000 for multiple 

years.  Invited to speak at the meeting are a representative from DMEA and members of the 

Dark Skies Paonia group to discuss plans moving forward for the street lights in Paonia.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

11

2.



Quantity Type Wattage Monthly Tariff Monthly Cost

7 HPS 100 14.42$                 100.94$               

13 HPS 150 17.89$                 232.57$               

2 HPS 250 25.54$                 51.08$                 

63 MV 175 17.94$                 1,130.22$            

2 MV 250 24.19$                 48.38$                 

3 MV 400 34.01$                 102.03$               

Monthly Total 1,665.22$            

Proposed

Quantity Type Wattage Monthly Tariff Monthly Cost

90 LED 38 7.21$                   648.90$               

0 LED 74 12.77$                 -$                     

648.90$               

1,016.32$            

Costs (Estimate)

Quantity Type Wattage Cost Each Total

90 LED 38 229.52$               20,656.76$         

0 LED 74 321.75$               -$                     

90 Photocells 30.11$                 2,709.90$            

Total Cost 23,366.66$         

Cost Savings

23,366.66$            1,016.32$              23.0 months payback

5.2 SIR @ 10 years

7.8 SIR @ 15 years

Town of Paonia Street Lights

Monthly Total

Monthly Savings

12

2.



Account Service Address Device Type Dvc Type Description Active Qty Charge Cost per light Wattage

6440160600 STREET LIGHTS S16 SEC LIGHT HP-8-16000 75 KWH 1 $16.46 16.46 150

6444001800 DAUNKNOWN 01033 S16 SEC LIGHT HP-8-16000 75 KWH 16 $263.36 150

6444004000 COBBLE CREEK S16 SEC LIGHT HP-8-16000 75 KWH 171 $2,814.66 150

6440160900 STREET LIGHTS S16 SEC LIGHT HP-8-16000 75 KWH 2 $32.92 150

6444010000 SECURITY LIGHTS S16 SEC LIGHT HP-8-16000 75 KWH 2 $32.92 150

192 $3,160.32

6440160900 STREET LIGHTS S17 SEC LIGHT HP-8-30000 120 KWH 213 $5,005.50 23.5 250

6440161200 STREET LIGHTS S17 SEC LIGHT HP-8-30000 120 KWH 136 $3,196.00 250

6444003900 DAUNKNOWN 01034 S17 SEC LIGHT HP-8-30000 120 KWH 18 $423.00

367 $8,624.50

6444001800 DAUNKNOWN 01033 S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 376 $4,989.52 13.27 100

6444004000 COBBLE CREEK S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 4 $53.08 100

6440160900 STREET LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 4 $53.08 100

6440161200 STREET LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 3 $39.81 100

6444010000 SECURITY LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 188 $2,494.76 100

6440160400 STREET LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 1 $13.27 100

6440160700 STREET LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 1 $13.27 100

6440160300 STREET LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 3 $39.81 100

6444000000 SECURITY LIGHTS S15 SEC LIGHT HP-8-9500 50 KWH 163 $2,163.01 100

743 $9,859.61

6444001800 DAUNKNOWN 01033 SL7 SEC LIGHT MV-8-11200 115 KWH 1 $22.26 22.26 250

1 $22.26

6440160600 STREET LIGHTS SL8 SEC LIGHT MV-8-21000 175 KWH 1 $31.29 31.29 400

6444001800 DAUNKNOWN 01033 SL8 SEC LIGHT MV-8-21000 175 KWH 1 $31.29 400

2 $62.58

6440160000 WALKWAY LIGHTS SL6 SEC LIGHT MV-8-7950 80 KWH 41 $676.91 16.51 175

6440160400 STREET LIGHTS SL6 SEC LIGHT MV-8-7950 80 KWH 192 $3,169.92 175

6440160700 STREET LIGHTS SL6 SEC LIGHT MV-8-7950 80 KWH 128 $2,113.28 175

6440160300 STREET LIGHTS SL6 SEC LIGHT MV-8-7950 80 KWH 151 $2,493.01 175

512 $8,453.12

1817 $30,182.39

6440160600 STREET LIGHTS S32 ST LIGHT LED-8-10200 150 10 $117.50 11.75

6444001800 DAUNKNOWN 01033 S32 ST LIGHT LED-8-10200 150 4 $47.00

6444004000 COBBLE CREEK S32 ST LIGHT LED-8-10200 150 5 $58.75

6440160900 STREET LIGHTS S32 ST LIGHT LED-8-10200 150 1 $11.75

6440161200 STREET LIGHTS S32 ST LIGHT LED-8-10200 150 1 $11.75

6440160900 STREET LIGHTS S31 ST LIGHT LED-8-10200 250 1 $11.75 11.75

6440160600 STREET LIGHTS S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 5 $33.20 6.64

6444001800 DAUNKNOWN 01033 S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 5 $33.20

6440160900 STREET LIGHTS S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 3 $19.92

6440160000 WALKWAY LIGHTS S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 2 $13.28

6440160400 STREET LIGHTS S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 12 $79.68

6440160700 STREET LIGHTS S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 2 $13.28

6440160300 STREET LIGHTS S30 ST LIGHT LED-8-3400 100 6 $39.84

57 1874 $30,673.29 $490.90

13

2.



14

2.



15

2.



16

2.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Regular Minutes September 27, 2019 

Permanent Modification of Premise - Paonia Liquors LLC 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

17

3.



 

 

  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

September 24, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
1. Roll Call 

 PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

       Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

ABSENT 

Trustee Samira Hart 

 

The Regular Town Board Meeting held Tuesday, September 24, 2019, was called to     

order at 6:30 PM by Mayor Charles Stewart followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Approval of Agenda 
2. Agenda Approval 

      

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Bachran. 

 

Announcements 

3. Trustee Hart notified Mayor Stewart of her resignation as of October 09, 2019 Dis-

cussion ensued regarding the vacancy of the board of trustee seat at the October 

08, 2019 meeting. 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

1. None. 

 

Consent Agenda 
4. Regular Minutes: August 27, 2019 

 Special Minutes: September 04, 2019 

 Regular Minutes: September 10, 2019 

 Coyote School – Elsewhere Studios – Special Event Permit 10/31/19 

 

Motion to approve consent agenda as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson seconded Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout Voting 

Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Knutson. 

Mayor’s Report 
5. Mayor’s Report 

 Nothing to report. 

Staff Reports 
6. Interim Administrators Report: 

● Public Works working on capital improvement project maps 

● Map of sidewalk to repair prior and upcoming 

18

3.



 

 

  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

● Arch Coal water tap contract 

● North Fork Valley Airport 

● Invitation to Phil Zimmer to discuss updating street lighting, to be on the 

next agenda. 

 

7. Public Works 

● Town Park is ready for Mountain Harvest Festival. 

● Football Field is looking great. 

● Concrete ready to pour in front of Town Hall. 

● 1MG spilling 100,000 per day. 

● 2MG spilling 70,000 per day. 

● Computer error is being resolved. 

 

8. Police Report 

 Chief absent   

 Chief Ferguson advised Mayor Stewart there was nothing to report. 

 

9. Treasurer’s Report 

● Reviewed payroll and disbursements. 

Disbursements 
10. Disbursements 

 Motion to approve disbursements as presented and discussed. 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Budinger. 

Voting Yea, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Knutson. 

 

 Unfinished Business 

11. Western Slope Conservation Center – Letter of Support – Community Conserva-

tion Proposal. 

Ben Katz, Public Lands Program Director requested a letter of objection from the 

board of trustees regarding the USFS Grand Mesa, Uncompahgre, & Gunnison 

National Forests plan revision and a background plan including a map of areas 

which were included in the packet. 

 

Discussion Points: 

●  Special interest area                        
●  Recommended wilderness 

●  Motorized vehicle restrictions in the special interest areas 

●  Logging in the recommended wilderness areas 

 

Motion to approve Western Slope Conservation Center – Letter of Support as presented. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout seconded by Trustee Knutson Voting Yea:  

Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knutson. Voting  

Nay: Trustee Bear. 
 

Motion to direct Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to sign the letter prior to submittal. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by Trustee Budinger. Voting Yea: Trustee  

Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

14. Citizen for a Health Community - North Fork Mancos Master Development Plan 

Review & Consideration to Submit an Objection. 

 

Natasha Ledger presented the board with a newly drafted letter of objection included 

in the packet to the Board of Trustees.  Patrick Dooling, Executive Director of 

WSCC stated that the Western Slope Conservation Center supports the letter and 

19

3.



 

 

  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

being signed by the town. Noted concern: Citizens for a Healthy community posi-

tioning themselves for a lawsuit that they may intend to bring Town of Paonia in 

to. 

 

      Motion to approve the letter of objection to the U.S. Forest Service as presented. 

      Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Knutson. 

      Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Knutson, Trustee  

      Budinger. Voting Nay: Trustee Bear. 

 

      Motion to direct Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout and Board members who agree to sign the                                                                                   

Letter of Objection to the U.S. Forest Service as presented. 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by Trustee Budinger. Voting Yea: Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

15. Blue Sage Center - Letter to the State Historical Grant Fund 

 

 Attorney Nerlin provided the board with an updated draft letter that was handed out to the 

Mayor and Board members and did a summary of the letter.  

 

Motion to accept Blue Sage Center as presented to the State Historical Grant Fund. 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by Trustee Budinger.  

Voting Yay: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trus-

tee Bachran. 

 

16. Water System Infrastructure Analysis 

 

Public Works Director Travis Loberg stated that the request for a reference check on Farnsworth 

and JDS Hydro is complete with no negative references to report. 

 

Discussion ensued by Trustee Bear recommending an initial meeting with the public works com-

mittee team and the client of the project.  

 

Interim Administrator Corinne Ferguson stated that JDS Hydro contracted with DOLA and the 

grant funding is not available to the Town at this time via the contract. A DOLA representative 

will be coming to Town to meet and discuss other options. 

  

Motion to contract with JDS Hydro to perform the infrastructure analysis. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Bachran. Voting Yay: Mayor Pro-Tem Book-

out, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran. 

 

Finance Officer Cindy Jones recommended stating a dollar amount for the project in the motion. 

 

Discussion Points: 

Project funding 

Rate increases 

Moving forward on the project 

Specifics of loan reserve requirements 

 

New Business 

 

       16. North Fork Senior Connections (A Little Help) - Letter of Support 

Randy Campbell a member of A Little Help presented a draft letter of support for a planning 

grant to the Laura Jane Musser Foundation for $5000. The draft letter is included in the packet. 

 

Motion to approve North Fork Senior Connections (A Little Help) - Letter of Support as pre-

sented. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knuston seconded by Trustee Bachran. Voting Yay: Bear, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knuston, Trustee Bachran, Mayor Pro- Tem Bookout. 

 

20

3.



 

 

  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

18. North Fork Creative Coalition - Street Closure Request 

Treasurer Heidi Hudek and Board member Kaspar Keil presented a street closure application for 

Final Friday Frolics, September 27, 2019, in correlation with the Mountain Harvest Festival in 

hopes of bringing people to shop downtown. A street closure permission form signed by the 

businesses agreeing with the street closure along with a letter was presented in the packet to the 

Board of Trustees. 

 

Trustee Knuston provided his appreciation of how the North Fork Creative Coalition discussed 

the road closure with the downtown business owners. 

 

Interim Administrator Corinne Ferguson stated that this would be the second time the North Fork  

Creative Coalition has done a back to back road closure with the Mt. Harvest Festival. Concerns 

regarding maneuvering the barricades for vehicles to move in and out were discussed.  

 

Kaspar Keil stated that members would be physically maneuvering the barricades. 

 

Discussion Points: 

Additional Police Patrol 

Additional hours from the Public Works Department 

No fire permitted 

Cannot close prior to 6pm 

 

Motion to approve North Fork Creative Coalition - Street Closure Request as presented. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran seconded by Trustee Budinger. Voting Yay: Trustee Knuston, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro - Tem Bookout. 

 

19. Minnesota Avenue – Installation of Sidewalk Apron and Stop sign – Review and  

      Request for Extension 

 

Mayor Stewart provided a brief history of the conditional approval for a special use, to include a 

sidewalk apron and stop sign on Minnesota Avenue, made March 12, 2019. 

 

Frederick Zimmer believes the sidewalk apron is no longer needed seeing that there is no more 

construction and traffic flow is back to regular from the 10 single-family homes the area has. The 

clay workshop has 4 people working occasionally.  

 

Trustee Bear commented that it would be ideal to build-up to the sidewalk with optional material 

other than concrete to protect the sidewalk from damage. Trustee Knuston considers this to be an 

ideal option.  

 

Motion to modify action from March 12, 2019, Frederick Zimmer will build up to sidewalk level 

with sidewalk with alternative material. Motion made by Trustee Bear Seconded by Trustee 

Knuston. Voting Yay: Trustee Bachran. Trustee Budinger, Trustee Bear, Trustee Knutson, 

Mayor Pro–Tem Bookout. 

 

Silver Leaf resident stated to have a date of completion in the motion. 

 

Motion to amend the main motion to add the date of completion by the end of October 2019. 

 Main amended motion made by Trustee Bear Seconded by Trustee Knuston. Voting Yea: Trus-

tee Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bear.  

 

20. Clark Avenue Sewer Line Project Bid Results 

 

The Clark Ave sewer line bid results were included in the packet for review. 

 

Motion to accept Roop Excavation bid of $156,740 and go forward with the sewer line project. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear seconded by Trustee Bachran. Voting Yea: Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knuston. 

 

21

3.



 

 

  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

21. Town Tree Removal Policy 

Interim Administrator Corinne Ferguson presented a policy regarding tree removal within Town. 

Current regulations and internal policy were included in the packet for review. 

 

Mayor Stewart believes the removal of specific trees within Town is necessary, when causing 

property and sidewalk safety issues and it is within the Administrators' authority to make deci-

sions regarding the removal of trees.  

 

Discussion Points: 

● Administrator authority to remove certain trees 

● Property and Sidewalk safety 

● Policy notification to homeowners 

● Active involvement from the Tree Board 

● Monies spent on trees by homeowners 

● Considerations of homeowners  

● List of trees needing to be addressed  

 

Motion to reaffirm tree removal based on safety and damage caused to sidewalks 

under the Town Ordinance per section 5, Administrator authority. Motion made by 

Trustee Bear Seconded by Trustee Knuston. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout,  

Trustee Knuston, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger. 

 

Motion to amend the main motion to convert the 15-day notice to 30-day  

notice in section 3 of internal Town Tree removal policy.  

 

Main amended motion made by Trustee Bear Seconded by Trustee Knuston. Voting 

Yea: Trustee Knutson, Trustee Budinger, Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran. 

 

Public Comment: 

Suzanne Watsotson - concerned with no negotiation with the Town after the 30-day  

tree removal letter is sent to homeowners who are gone for the winter months. 

 

Interim Administrator Corinne Ferguson stated notices will be sent by certified mail,  

Once the 30-day notice is sent there is no negotiation.  

 

Michelle Patterson - concerned with homeowners that maintain the tree not having  

an opinion on the tree removal. 

 

Thomas Markle – believes the tree board could have meetings set up to discuss which 

trees to remove. 

Committee Reports 
22. Finance & Personnel 

Discussion ensued by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to revisit the hire of a new Town  

Administrator and to schedule a time. 

 

Mayor Stewart requested the calendar regarding timeline for hiring a new Town Ad-

ministrator be on the agenda for committee reports at the next board meeting. 

 

28. Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

 Discussion regarding: 

 Trees 

 Water storage 

 Sewer line 

 

29. Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

 Discussion regarding: 

● Trustee seat vacancy  

● Accessory Dwelling Unit discussion (ADU) 

 

22

3.



 

 

  

SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

      30. Space 2 Create 

● Twin Lakes property consideration for dwelling development 

         

  Discussion ensued by Mayor Stewart regarding what action can be taken  specifically on        

Twin Lakes property. 

 

31. Tree Board 

● Website is almost complete 

Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn. 

Motion made by Trustee Bear, Seconded by Trustee Bachran. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear, Trustee 

Bachran. 

 

Adjourned at: 8:59 pm 

  

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

Amanda Mojarro, Deputy Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  

23

3.



24

3.



25

3.



26

3.



27

3.



28

3.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Recognition for Service - Trustee Hart 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

29

4.



 

October 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Filling Vacant Trustee Seat 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

30

5.



Sec. 2-2-10. - Board of Trustees; terms, authority, qualifications and vacancies.  
(a)  Four-year terms for Trustees. At the April 6, 1976 election, six (6) Trustees shall be elected. The 

three (3) candidates for Trustee receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected for four-year 
terms, and the three (3) candidates for Trustee receiving the next highest numbers of votes shall be 
elected for two-year terms. At the next subsequent election and at each regular election thereafter, 
three (3) Trustees shall be elected to serve four-year terms.  

(b)  Authority. The Board of Trustees shall constitute the legislative body of the Town, shall have the 
power and authority, except as otherwise provided by statute, to exercise all power conferred upon 
or possessed by the Town, and shall have the power and authority to adopt such laws, ordinances 
and resolutions as it shall deem proper in the exercise thereof.  

(c)  Qualifications. Each Trustee shall be a resident of the Town and a registered elector who has 
resided within the Town limits for a period of at least twelve (12) consecutive months immediately 
preceding the date of the election. However, in case of annexation of property, any person who has 
resided within the annexed territory for the time prescribed in this Subsection shall be deemed to 
have met the residence requirements for the Town.  

(d)  Removal from office. By a majority vote of all members of the Board of Trustees, the Mayor or any 
Trustee may be removed from office. No such removal shall be made without a charge in writing and 
an opportunity of hearing being given unless the officer against whom the charge is made has 
moved out of the Town limits. When any officer ceases to reside within the Town limits, he or she 
may be removed from office pursuant to this Subsection.  

(e)  Vacancies. The Board of Trustees shall have power, by appointment, to fill all vacancies in the 
Board of Trustees or in any other elected office, and the person so appointed shall hold office until 
the next regular election and until his or her successor is elected and qualified. If the term of the 
person creating the vacancy was to extend beyond the next regular election, the person elected to fill 
the vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term. Where vacancies exist in the offices of Trustee 
and successors are to be elected at the next election to fill the unexpired terms, the three (3) 
candidates for Trustee receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected to four-year terms, and 
the candidates receiving the next highest number of votes, in descending order, shall be elected to 
fill the unexpired terms.  

(Ord. No. 336, 1974; Ord. No. 2014-04, § 1, 1-13-2015)  

31

5.



§ 31-4-303. Trustees to fill vacancy - mayor pro tem - clerk pro tem.

Colorado Statutes

Title 31. GOVERNMENT - MUNICIPAL

CORPORATE CLASS - ORGANIZATION AND TERRITORY

Article 4. Organizational Structure and Officers

Part 3. ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND OFFICERS OF STATUTORY TOWNS

Current through the 2019 Legislative Session

§ 31-4-303. Trustees to fill vacancy - mayor pro tem - clerk pro tem 

The board of trustees has the power, by appointment, to fill all vacancies in the board or any other
office, and the person so appointed shall hold his office until the next regular election and until his
successor is elected and has complied with section 31-4-401. The board also has the power to fill
a vacancy in the board or in any other elective office of the town by ordering an election to fill the
vacancy until the next regular election and until a successor has been elected and has complied
with section 31-4-401. If a vacancy in the board or in such other elective office is not filled by
appointment or an election is not ordered within sixty days after the vacancy occurs, the board
shall order an election, subject to the municipal election code, to be held as soon as practicable to
fill the vacancy until the next regular election and until a successor has been elected and has
complied with section 31-4-401. At its first meeting, the board shall choose one of the trustees as
mayor pro tem who, in the absence of the mayor from any meeting of said board or during the
mayor's absence from the town or his inability to act, shall perform the mayor's duties. The board
also has the power to elect a clerk pro tem to perform the duties of the clerk during his absence or
inability to act.

Cite as C.R.S. § 31-4-303

History. L. 75: Entire title R&RE, p. 1034, § 1, effective July 1. L. 81: Entire section amended, p. 1495, § 7, effective

June 8. L. 83: Entire section amended, p. 1257, § 11, effective July 1. L. 88: Entire section amended, p. 1125, § 6,

effective April 4.

Editor's Note:

This section is similar to former § 31-3-303 as it existed prior to 1975.

32

5.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

33

6.



 

October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Modification of Mapping RFP to Asset Inventory RFP 

Summary:   

Modifying Boar direction for waterline mapping to a full asset inventory, 
which will include waterline mapping as part of the inventory. 
 

Notes: 

After meeting with Kimberly from DOLA Travis and I request that we be 
permitted to modify the mapping rfp.  It was strongly recommended, and I 
agree, that what we need to do is a full asset inventory, to include water and 
sewer lines, plants, storage, streets, springs, boxes, culverts, fleet, etc, which 
would include the full mapping component of all lines, water, storm water, 
and sewer.  There is a December grant cycle the Town plans to apply for, 
that would provide a 50/50 match for the project.  Crawford, while 
substantially smaller than Paonia, is in process of completing their 
inventory now, at a cost of $38,000.  Even if the Town came in at $100,000, 
that is a $50,000 match which can be spread-out over-all Town funds since 
it will include all Town assets.   
 
In order to address the immediate need of the waterline mapping we will 
create the rfp to list waterline mapping as an individual line item as well as 
project #1 on the complete inventory. 
 
This inventory is something the Town has never had in its entirety. It will 
include lifetime left on our inventory and help build the capital 
improvement planning component we desperately need. It will also 
substantially help drive the update on the master plan.   
 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

34

7.



 

October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Recommendation for Back-Flow Device Testing 

Summary:   

Request to solicit proposals from certified back-flow testers in the area. 

 

Notes: 

Through a lot of work-hours, site visits, and telephone calls we are now in the range required 

to meet compliance with back-flow testing and reporting.  Between the public works director, 

myself, and the deputy clerk, we have logged in excess of 40+ hours in the last 45 days to 

complete this endeavor.  This brings us to compliance of 70% of devices tested/reported. 

 

Throughout this process and knowing that in the next cycle we will need 80% compliance we 

propose, for Board approval, to direct solicit Western Slope back-flow testers to bid to contract 

directly with the Town for annual back-flow certifications.  The Town will provide the list of 

properties with a testable device to the contractor, who will schedule, test, provide document 

and invoice to the town, who will, in turn, add the test, AT COST, to the Sales & Service line 

on our utility billing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

35

8.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Public Works 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

36

9.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

37

10.



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   09/15/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:06:02 MARIJUANA

Address
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

20:05:36 WELFARE CHECK FARMERS MINE RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3
Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   09/16/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:33:14 MARIJUANA PPD PPD WW
16:39:57 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO  
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   09/17/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:44:58 MARIJUANA PPD PPD WW
19:25:29 SUSPICIOUS

Address
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO  
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   09/18/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
16:51:13 Information PPD PPD
19:37:48 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE; PHS, Paonia, CO  
SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   09/19/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
07:37:55 SUSPICIOUS

Address
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

12:42:32 ANIMAL CONTROL 2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
14:30:59 Parking Problem PPD DIST3 WW
17:40:52 ALARM

50 SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   09/20/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:26:17 Disturbance PPD PPD VW
18:00:11 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
NIAGARA AVE; Paonia, CO PPD PPD

38

10.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 3

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
18:40:56 911/hangup PPD PPD

21:11:34 AGENCY ASSIST

Address
MEADOWBROOK BLVD; PAONIA CARE 
AND REHABILITATION, Paonia, CO  
HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   09/21/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
02:16:55 Juvenile Prob PPD PPD
14:47:47 CITIZEN ASSIST PPD PPD
17:45:35 Traffic Stop

Address
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO  
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK OF 2ND St., Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   09/22/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
04:54:05 ALARM

Address
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   09/23/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:45:46 MARIJUANA PPD PPD WW
18:02:33 MARIJUANA PPD PPD WW
18:42:02 MARIJUANA PPD PPD WW
19:37:15 SUSPICIOUS

Address
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO  
NORTH FORK AVE, Paonia, CO  
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO  
PAN AMERICAN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   09/24/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
14:12:32 TrafficAccident PPD PPD CIT
15:40:17 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
20:51:14 CIVIL PROBLEM

Address
500 Block 2nd St., Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO  
NIAGARA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   09/26/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
10:06:25 ABANDONED VEHIC 4TH ST; , Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW
11:46:32 AGENCY ASSIST MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD
18:19:54 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD

19:22:54 AGENCY ASSIST

4TH ST; PAONIA TOWN PARK, Paonia, CO

CANYON RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3
Total Incidents for this Date: 4

39

10.



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 3

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 09/15/19` and `00:00:01 10/01/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Date Occurred:   09/27/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
15:16:43 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
15:46:54 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 CIT
20:01:07 CIVIL PROBLEM

400 BLOCK 5TH STREET, Paonia, CO 
400 BLOCK 5TH STREET, Paonia, CO 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 3

Date Occurred:   09/28/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
09:46:08 THEFT PPD DIST3
10:45:32 Medical/transfe PPD PPD
16:24:06 MARIJUANA

Address
HIGHWAY 133, Paonia, CO  
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO 
3RD ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

18:49:23 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD PPD
19:01:54 AUTO THEFT PPD PPD RFP
21:26:02 Pursuit

OAK AVE, Paonia, CO
400 Block 4th St., Paonia, CO
BLOCK 3RD STREET, Paonia, CO PPD PPD RFP

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   09/29/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
13:24:04 Traffic Stop

Address
4TH ST; PAONIA TOWN PARK, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   09/30/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
11:45:20 SUSPICIOUS PPD

12:59:38 FRAUD

Address
3rd St & 4th St; btwn boxelder & poplar, Paonia, 
CO
POPLAR AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Total reported: 43

VW=1
WW=9
CIT=5
RFP=2

40

10.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

41

11.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

42

12.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Delta County Libraries Presentation Regarding Ballot Issue 7A 

Summary:   

Lea Hart with the Delta County Libraries requested to be on the agenda to present information 

to the Board regarding ballot issue 7A. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

43

13.



44

13.



45

13.



46

13.



47

13.



48

13.



49

13.



50

13.



51

13.



52

13.



53

13.



54

13.



 

October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

DeHerrera Minor Subdivision – 115 North Fork Avenue 

Summary:   

Administrator recommended minor subdivision. 

 

Notes: 

I have received and reviewed the minor subdivision request from Hannah & Simon DeHerrera, 

115 North Fork Avenue.   

Requirements for application review are: 

1. Complete Application with Fees – Received 

2. Legal description of property and proof of ownership – Received 

3.Location Improvement Certificate – Received 

4. A narrative describing access, parking, and fire protection access – Received 

 

All requirements have been met. 

 

Requirements for Administrator recommendation for approval are: 

1. Proposed parcels are parallel to the existing lot – Met 

2. Proposed parcel have applicable setbacks – Met 

3. Structures on proposed parcels do not exceed maximum coverage – Met 

4. Proposed area conforms to zoning use – Met  

5. creates no more than three (3) parcels – Met  

6. No code violations created on proposed parcel - Met 

7. Referred to all Town departments and utility company’s minimum of 15 days prior – Met 

8. No other minor subdivision on this lot exists – Met 

 

All requirements have been met. 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

55

14.



56

14.



57

14.



58

14.



59

14.



60

14.



61

14.



 

October 4, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Western Slope Conservation Center – Great Outdoors Colorado – Grant 

Support 

 Resolution 2019-13- Paonia River Park Community Access Project 
 

Summary:   

The WSCC requests Town support of a GOCO grant application for a river park project which 

will include the replacement of the Minnesota Creek Bridge, outdoor education and seating 

areas, picnic and shade areas, and more.  The request specific to the town is to support the 

project, act as a grant fund pass-through for WSCC, adopt Resolution 2019-13 in support of 

the project. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions:  

Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-13 in support of the Paonia Riverpark Community Access 

Project. 

 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

62

15.



 

 

Questionnaire - Paonia River Park Community Access Project 
 

YOUR COMMUNITY 
 
The Paonia River Park Community Access Project will serve the Town of Paonia (population 
1,450) and the surrounding North Fork Valley communities (estimated population 10,000) 
including Hotchkiss (population 942) and Crawford (population 430). The North Fork Valley 
spans 400 square miles in southeastern Delta County, nestled between the West Elk Mountains 
and the Black Canyon of the Gunnison. The Paonia River Park (River Park) is located along the 
banks of the North Fork of the Gunnison River (North Fork) in Paonia. It is utilized for river-
based recreation, an observatory for environmental learning, an outlet for creative expression, 
and as an ongoing community stewardship project. The Park is 24 acres in size and is jointly 
owned by the Town of Paonia and Western Slope Conservation Center.  
 
Since the 1880s our rural community has been home to generations of hard-working ranchers, 
shepherds, farmers, orchardists, and coal miners. In recent decades, vintners, winemakers, 
organic growers, and urban refugees have migrated to the valley seeking a wholesome and 
authentic community to raise their families or retire. Wrestling more than a subsistence living 
from this beautiful but physically and economically isolated area is difficult. The per-capita 
income in Paonia is approximately $28,268, which is 19% less than the state per-capita income 
($34,845). Delta County is the 13th poorest county in Colorado and has a 3.2% unemployment 
rate. Delta County was included in the Consumer Finance Protection Bureau’s 2019 list of rural 
and underserved counties. 2018 Statistics from the Colorado Department of Education show 
that 56% of Paonia High School students and 48% of Paonia Elementary School students qualify 
for free or reduced cost lunches.   
 
Nearly half of Delta County is public lands, including the Grand Mesa Uncompahgre and 
Gunnison (GMUG) National Forests, Gunnison Gorge National Conservation Area, and Black 
Canyon of the Gunnison National Park. Even so, access to these public lands is not always easy 
for local residents, who recently identified significant geographic, cultural, and economic 
barriers to recreating in the outdoors through a GOCO Inspire Initiative survey of 3600 students 
and 400 adults. 95% of the riverfront along the North Fork of the Gunnison River is privately 
owned, which makes the few public access points like the Paonia River Park essential 
community resources. According to a separate North Fork Valley Pool, Park and Recreation 
District survey, our community’s most popular recreational activities include visiting nature 
areas, running/walking, hiking, fishing, and swimming. While there is growing interest in biking, 
river rafting, and snowmobiling, traditional recreational activities such as hunting and fishing 
remain popular and contribute nearly $28 million to the local economy.  
 
Our sparsely populated valley has an abundance of public lands, but the River Park is the only 
local park designed to connect the community with nature. Paonia’s Town Park provides 
athletic facilities, a stage for outdoor concerts, playgrounds, and green space for picnics and 
festivals. The only other local free park-like places in the North Fork Valley are the Hotchkiss 
and Crawford elementary school playgrounds and the picnic area within the County 

63

15.



  

 

 

fairgrounds. Confluence Park in Delta, 30 miles from Paonia, is the closest park with trails, river 
access, and interpretative signs.   
 
Due to the lack of access to public spaces along the river, the Paonia River Park sees significant 
visitation from a variety of user groups; Paonia-area students: 600 visits/year (400 4th Graders, 
10 additional class visits of various grades); Local residents: 14600 visits/year (average 40 visits 
per day, less in winter, more in summer); Recreational Boaters: 950 visits/year (150 during Float 
Fest, 20 parties per week x 10 week season x 4 people per party); Tourists: 1200 visits/year (10 
per day x 120 days of high season). Additionally, an average of 120 of the 200 students at 
Paonia Elementary school visit the River Park as part of their curriculum. These students visit 
these locations with their classes multiple times per year. Furthermore, the Western Slope 
Conservation Center hosts Conservation Days annually at the Paonia River Park for all of Delta 
County’s  4th graders.  

 
SCOPE 

Minnesota Creek Bridge Replacement 
A key feature that has led to the success of the Paonia River Park has been its ADA accessibility. 
People of all ages use the trail system due to its gentle slopes and smooth tread. However, one 
feature in need of update for ADA-compliance is the Minnesota Creek Pedestrian Bridge. The 
current bridge over Minnesota Creek was constructed in 2008 and updated with safety railings 
in 2009 (Photo 1). The bridge connects the front end of the park to the loop trail and the 
northeast end of the park, creating an approximately 1-mile-long trail loop (Map 1 - Location 
Map). The bridge is the only way to legally and safely access the northeast end of the park. The 
primitive design of the bridge is not ADA-compliant, is aesthetically unpleasing, and does not 
adhere to the visual theme of the other structures within the park. The bridge was originally 
constructed as a temporary, low-cost option to connect the trail system. 
 
Moreover, the confluence of Minnesota Creek and the North Fork is eroding as the river settles 
into its preferred path (Photos 2 and 3). The trail just east of Minnesota Creek bridge 
experiences seasonal flooding which causes damage to the trail and adds maintenance costs 
each year (Photos 5 and 6). Despite efforts to stabilize the eroding bank, the bridge structure 
and adjacent trails are at risk of undercutting each flood season. Taking this unstable 
geomorphology into consideration, the updated bridge and connecting trail system will be 
rebuilt at a stable location approximately 100 feet upstream from the confluence. This will 
require building trails to reconnect the new bridge to the existing trail. 
 
In 2014, the Conservation Center completed its trails master plan and contracted Dowl 
Engineering to begin designs for an ADA compliant pedestrian bridge. Appendix A details Dowl’s 
engineering plans for the new Minnesota Creek Pedestrian Bridge. The bridge will be 
constructed according to the LRFD Guide Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges, 
2nd Edition. Cost estimate for this project is included in the budget. Recent flash flooding and 
high runoff conditions on Minnesota Creek, combined with continued erosion of the banks of 
the North Fork near the bridge, highlights the need for detailed modeling of Minnesota Creek 
to ensure the bridge is engineered to withstand high water conditions in the future.  The bridge 

64

15.



  

 

 

will be a permanent, long-term fixture at the Paonia River Park, allowing easy access to the loop 
trail and a planned outdoor classroom. 
 
There is a risk that the results from the engineering modeling will recommend that some or all 
of the bridge needs to be placed further upstream, outside of our property boundary. If this is 
so, we will pursue an easement through the neighboring property. This will require an 
additional grant to assist with legal costs, and may adjust the timeline. We have discussed plans 
for the River Park with our neighbors, and they would be open to pursuing an easement for this 
portion of our project. 
 
Outdoor Classroom with Boulder Seating 
The Paonia River Park is designed to serve as an outdoor classroom, with educational signage, 
piezometers, river and wetland overlooks, and river access. The 2014 Paonia River Park Trail 
Master Plan included plans for a formal outdoor classroom with boulder seating on the 
northside of Minnesota Creek (Map 1). The Master Plan identified a design that would be 
functional and have low-impact to the surrounding natural area (Map 2).  The selected location 
is a natural amphitheater and is ideal for a gathering space (Photo 7). The outdoor classroom 
will consist of 35 large boulders placed in nested semicircles on a pitched slope, providing 
seating for roughly 70 individuals, facing a small stage/speaker’s area, and protected by a shade 
structure. This space could also be used as a community group gathering space, education and 
lecture venue, picnic area, and more. The installation will be permanent, for which the only 
maintenance required will be removing weeds.  
 
Picnic Area Shade Structure 
A primary installation of the Paonia River Park Master Plan in 2014 was two picnic tables on a 
concrete slab adjacent to the path and parking lot in the upper section of the park. (See photo 8 
of the picnic area intended for the shade structures) This area receives high visitation from 
school groups and families, in addition to being utilized during our educational events.  A 
planned shade structure over the tables that provides protection from inclement and hot sunny 
weather is still needed. 

ACCESS 
The Paonia River Park is accessible by foot, bike, automobile, or boat. The River Park is located 
on Grand Avenue, less than a half mile from Hwy 133/West Elk Scenic Byway.  Shady Lane, a 
gravel road, connects the Paonia River Park entrance to Grand Avenue. Within the River Park 
there is a gravel parking lot with room for up to 20 cars and five trailers. The graded gravel boat 
ramp provides access to the river. There is an artistic fish skeleton bike rack for people to safely 
stow bikes. 

While many River Park visitors choose to drive, visitors from Paonia can easily walk or bike to 
the Park, since it is less than ½ mile from downtown Paonia. The vast majority of students in 
Paonia study close to the park, allowing safe and easy access for classes and for youth outside 
of school activities. Paonia Elementary School/North Fork School for Integrated Studies, the 
Vision Charter School and Paonia Junior/Senior High School are all within a ½ mile, (Map 1).  

65

15.



  

 

 

A Paonia River Park Working Group, facilitated by the Western Slope Conservation Center, has 
set improved accessibility as one of its primary goals for the Park. In 2013, the Western Slope 
Conservation Center installed a winding concrete pathway that connects the road and parking 
lot to the viewing platform and picnic area. In 2015, the Conservation Center installed an ADA-
compliant ramp for access between the entrance and picnic area to the River Park trail system. 
Currently, the only limitation for ADA-compliance is the pedestrian bridge which this project 
proposes to replace. The new bridge will make a planned formal outdoor classroom with 
boulder seating and shade structures on the path beyond Minnesota Creek accessible for all  
students and community members. 

The Paonia River Park provides one of the few legal public access points to the North Fork. 
Within the Park is a gravel boat ramp, which serves two of the three most popular rafting 
reaches of the North Fork: Paonia Reservoir to Paonia River Park (3-hour Class 3+ reach) or 
Paonia to Hotchkiss (2-hour Class 2/3 reach).  

NEED 

The Paonia River Park Bridge and Outdoor Classroom project is a community project that will 
improve and secure long-term connectivity and access to the trail system within the Park. This 
project will amplify recreational access and facilitate community learning and gathering 
opportunities for visitors and residents. Because usage of the Park increases understanding and 
enjoyment of our local river environment, cultivating stronger relationships between local 
citizens and our rivers is critical to supporting river-based recreation, the success of natural 
resource management, and increased participation in local conservation initiatives. 

The Paonia River Park was designed as an outdoor classroom. As part of environmental 
curriculum at Paonia Junior/Senior High, students often take walking field trips to the River 
Park. Younger students from the nearby elementary school also walk there for field trips to gain 
hands-on experience about the natural environment. However, aside from the 2 picnic tables at 
the park entrance and 3 benches spread throughout the park, there is no group seating within 
the 19-acre park. An outdoor classroom with boulder seating for 75 and a 20’ x 20’ covered 
speaker’s area will serve as a comfortable natural amphitheater for larger groups to assemble. 
This new classroom will be placed toward the middle of the park away from cars, providing a 
safer gathering space for children.  In addition to student groups, community groups will also be 
able to hold seminars or other gatherings in the space. 

We will enhance visitor and learning experiences by constructing a new permanent pedestrian 
bridge to cross Minnesota Creek, which will secure safe, long-term ADA compliant access to the 
full mile-long Paonia River Park trail loop. This trail loop includes additional river access, 
wetland and wildlife viewing, and a series of interpretive signs as funded by a 2015 GOCO Mini-
grant.  Preliminary design and engineering for the new bridge has been in place for 4 years. We 
have been unable to secure funding under any other grants for this important project. 

The existing pedestrian bridge over Minnesota Creek is severely deficient. (See photos 1-5) The 
current bridge was built as a temporary solution using a piece of large concrete culvert. It is the 
only section of the trail system that is out of compliance for ADA accessibility. The bridge has 
already required stabilization due to erosion during high water, both from Minnesota Creek and 

66

15.



  

 

 

the main stem of the North Fork of the Gunnison River. High runoff in Spring 2019 also caused 
the bank anchoring the current structure to erode, and the bridge will likely wash out 
completely within the next year.  To ensure the bridge will not be threatened by high water in 
the future, a new site further up Minnesota Creek, that also includes enough span length for an 
ADA-accessible deck, needs to be engineered with detailed flow modeling. Constructing a new 
bridge will require installing 100 ft of new trail to re-connect the existing trails on either side of 
the new bridge. 

We take pride in sharing public access to the North Fork. Ninety-five percent of the land 
bordering the North Fork is privately owned, effectively shutting off public river access along 
the majority of the river. The Paonia River Park provides the only developed legal public access 
on the 33-mile-long river.  We also take responsibility for publishing maps, information, and 
signage that informs visitors of the rights, duties, and responsibilities that go hand-in-hand with 
accessing and stewarding the river environment. 

PLANNING/OUTREACH 

Planning along the Paonia River Park corridor has a long history of being a community, 
consensus-building endeavor. Before the Paonia River Park was established, the Conservation 
Center’s predecessor, the North Fork River Improvement Association (NFRIA), held a series of 
public meetings in 2003 with representatives including the North Fork Pool Park & Recreation 
District, the Town of Paonia, neighboring residential landowners, local industry, and citizens to 
explore interest in public river access. 

The Paonia River Park has been a platform through which diverse stakeholders have come 
together to shape the property’s development. The original Paonia River Park Committee 
developed the first plan that took advantage of the Paonia River Park site’s unique qualities: a 
former in-stream gravel mine adjacent to two historic buildings, its proximity to three schools, 
and its condition as a healthy riparian corridor. 

This original plan was further developed and finalized into the guiding documents we use today 
with the help of a Colorado Parks and Wildlife Planning Grant awarded in 2013. The Paonia 
River Park Committee, with the help of the Paonia River Park Coordinator, solicited input from 
the community through a Public Open House and Tour in August of 2013 that was attended by 
ten people; a Paonia River Park Survey in the same month that was completed by 74 people 
(See Attachment E, Blank Paonia River Park Survey & Attachment F, Paonia River Park Survey 
Results); a Draft Trail Plan Presentation in October of 2013 that was attended by 12 people; a 
Public Comment Period from February through May of 2014 when plan drafts were displayed at 
the Paonia Town Hall and Paonia Public Library with space for public comment; and a Paonia 
River Park Follow-Up Tour in June of 2014. Through this community engagement, the Paonia 
River Park Trail Master Plan was born. An improved pedestrian bridge and outdoor classroom is 
a part of the plan that also includes future connectivity across the Grand Street Bridge to a 
proposed loop trail on Paonia JR/SR High School land and other trails. Our Paonia River Park 
Bridge and Outdoor Classroom project will be a key element the River Park trail system and 
development of the River Park.  

67

15.



  

 

 

The Town of Paonia and the Conservation Center are working together to prepare the project 
site: 

● Determination of the bridge design and its location are in process, using the Minnesota 
Creek Bridge initial design work that was completed by Dowl engineering in July 2015  

● WSCC is working with our neighbors to develop a project implementation plan that will 
benefit the river park community. 

 
OPPOSITION 

There is no opposition to this project.  
 

TIMELINE 
Preliminary engineering and design of the Minnesota Creek Pedestrian Bridge was completed in 
2015.  (Appendix A: Minnesota Creek Bridge Plan Set and Cost Estimates).  Early designs for the 
Outdoor Classroom with Boulder Seating was completed with the Paonia River Park Trail 
Master Plan in 2013. The following table details the projected schedule for installation for the 
Pedestrian Bridge and Outdoor Classroom with Boulder Seating: 
 
 

Project Start Date Completion date 

Minnesota Creek Bridge   

Final Design 5/1/2020 7/31/2020 

Mobilization 8/01/2020 8/31/2020 

Remove Old Bridge 9/1/2020 10/1/2020 

Bridge Installation/Construction 9/1/2020 11/1/2020 

Reconnect Trail to bridge 
sections 

5/1/2021 6/30/2021 

Outdoor Classroom with 
Boulder Seating 

  

Design of outdoor Classroom 5/1/2020 5/31/2020 

Construction / Boulder 
Installation 

5/31/2021 7/1/2021 

Outdoor Classroom Shade 
Structure  

  

68

15.



  

 

 

Design  1/1/2021 3/1/2021 

Construction  7/1/2021 8/1/2021 

Picnic Shade Structure    

Design 3/31/2020 3/31/2020 

Construction  4/1/2020 5/1/2020 

Final Report for GOCO   

Drafting & Completion 9/1/2021 3/1/2022 

 

MAINTENANCE 

Minnesota Creek Pedestrian Bridge 
The Paonia River Park has been a grassroots, community maintained project for over 17 years.  
The Western Slope Conservation Center and Paonia River Park Working Group will be 
responsible for managing maintenance of the newly constructed Minnesota Creek Pedestrian 
Bridge. Maintenance of the bridge is likely to be minimal as the infrastructure is designed for as 
little wear as possible. Also, by removing the current bridge and reconstructing an ADA-
compliant one further upstream, the trail will no longer be subject to damage from seasonal 
flooding.  Annual cost: negligible 
 
Outdoor Classroom with Boulder Seating 
Similarly, the Outdoor Classroom with Boulder Seating, located within the Paonia River Park,  is 
designed to have minimal maintenance needs. In keeping with the living riparian corridor 
theme of the River Park, the Outdoor Classroom will not include any impervious surfaces or 
structures that need to be maintained. Weeding, trimming around boulders, trash clean up, and 
other maintenance tasks will be performed by volunteers on organized River Park Work days. 
Annual cost: $500. 
 

YOUTH INVOLVEMENT 

WSCC works closely with local schools including: Delta County School district, Paonia 
Experiential Leadership Academy, North Fork School Integrated Studies; and other outdoor 
education groups such as The Nature Connection. Students from these institutions frequently 
visit the River Park, and the outdoor classroom will give them the space for a focused learning 
environment in an outdoor setting. Following completion of the project, we will host an 
opening ceremony of the Outdoor Classroom to showcase its use for educational events. All 
local schools will be invited to attend. Aside from direct work with the schools, this project will 
expand our educational programs and workshops--which tend to take place on local Forest 
Service Lands or in our office--to this outdoor seating area. 

69

15.



  

 

 

Additionally, the US Forest Service, and The Nature Connection recently created the Youth 
Outdoor Network (YON) at high schools across Delta County. YON consists of students 
interested in the outdoors and pursuing careers in the natural resources sector. In addition to 
attending field trips and educational opportunities in school, YON students often assist in 
stewardship projects across the region, with a few even joining trail crews in the summer.  

We plan to enlist YON students and student volunteers from local schools to help with key 
components of this project, such as trail reconnection and post-construction staging for the 
boulder classroom. We also consistently use student volunteers for projects like invasive weed 
removal and landscaping, clean-up projects, and trail maintenance.  

 

  MATCH STATUS 

This project is the result of multiple partnerships. We are currently seeking to secure $31,200 in 
cash match through the Telluray Foundation and $12,500 through the Walton Family 
foundation. We expect to secure funding through the Telluray Foundation in November 2019 
and Walton Family Foundation in January 2021. We have additional partnerships with a number 
of entities invested in the River Park. We have secured $14,000 of in-kind match through the 
following partners: Delta County, Delta County School District, The Nature Connection, Odisea 
Engineering, OldCastle Materials, and other private landowners. The Western Slope 
Conservation Center will be contributing an additional $1,500 of in-kind time to the project.  

 

NEED FOR FUNDS 
The Paonia River Park Bridge and Outdoor Classroom project represents the next step in a 
community-driven goal of a comprehensive use of our river corridor in the Paonia area. There 
have been many projects over the years to work incrementally toward that goal and this project 
is the next step in that progression. It will improve safety and comfort, in particular for local 
students, as well as reduce future maintenance costs due to improved bridge engineering and 
siting for the Minnesota Creek bridge. We have no other known opportunities for carrying out 
this important connectivity without the support of the GOCO LPOR grant program. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

70

15.



  

 

 

 
 

 

Photo 1: Current primitive bridge over Minnesota Creek during low flow summer months 
 

 
Photo 2: Severely eroded bank looking east from the Minnesota Creek Bridge is a safety and 
ADA compliance risk, and a threat to bridge stability.   

71

15.



  

 

 

 
Photo 3: Severely eroded bank viewed northwest toward the bridge. This section of trail just off 
the bridge experiences flooding and erosion during Spring runoff, and a major piece was eroded 
with Spring 2019’s high runoff.  
 

 

 

72

15.



  

 

 

 
Photos 4 & 5: Bridge and Confluence of Minnesota Creek and the North Fork of the Gunnison. 
Flooding during Spring Runoff (bottom photo) jeopardizes the stability of the river bank and 
bridge.  

 
 

73

15.



  

 

 

Photo 6: Flooded trail during Spring runoff, just southeast of Minnesota Creek bridge. The new 
bridge and connecting trail will be built outside of flood-prone areas, reducing maintenance 
costs and risks to infrastructure. 
 

 
Photo 7: Proposed location of outdoor classroom with boulder seating. The natural shape of 
this area will lend well to its use as a gathering space for large classes or community groups.  
 
 

 
 

Photo 8: Proposed location of shade structure above current picnic area.  

74

15.



Source of Funds

Date 

Secured

GOCO Grant 

Request

Applicant 

Match ($)

Partner 

Match ($)

CASH

GOCO Grant Request applied 135,230.00

Town of Paonia 10/24/2019           1,000.00 

Western Slope Conservation Center 10/24/2019           1,500.00 

Telluray Foundation pending     31,200.00 

Gates Family Foundation pending     12,500.00 

IN-KIND

Town of Paonia 10/24/2019       1,000.00 

Private Landowners 11/2/2019     10,500.00 

Odisea, LLC 11/2/2019 2,500.00 

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS        135,230.00 $2,500.00     57,700.00 

CASH Use of Funds

Number of 

Units Cost Per Unit GOCO Funds

Applicant 

Funds

Partner 

Funds

Design & Engineering
Odisea, LLC Pedestrian Bridge engineering, design, permits 1.00                  LS             30,000.00 

Paonia River Park Pedestrian Bridge

TBD Based on bids Pedestrian Bridge 1.00                  LS 69,000.00           11,000.00      

Private landowners & WSCC Boulders (35 @ $300 in-kind) -                      

Trail Re-Alignment for New Bridge

100 LF

WSCC Mobalization and installation 1.00                  LS               3,000.00 1,000.00        

Delta Sand & Gravel Materials for trail re-aligment 1.00                  LS               1,500.00 500.00           

Boulder Classroom and Shade 
WSCC sub-contractors Site prep. & consturction of Boulder Classroom 1.00                  LS               9,040.00 13,560.00      

WSCC sub-contractors Site prep. & construction of Shade Structure 1.00                  LS               5,360.00 8,040.00        

Picnic Table Shade Structure

WSCC sub-contractors Site prep. & construction of Shade Structure 1.00                  LS
              6,400.00 

9,600.00        

Project Management & Reporting

WSCC Project Management 5%               4,715.00 1,500.00             

WSCC Administration and Reporting 5%               6,215.00 

USE OF FUNDS - CASH SUBTOTAL $135,230.00 $1,500.00 $43,700.00

Paonia River Park Community Access - Project Budget

1

75

15.



IN-KIND Use of Funds

No. of Units / 

Hours / Acres

Cost Per Unit 

/ Hour / Acre GOCO Funds

Applicant 

Funds

Partner 

Funds

Professional Services

Odisea, LLC Pedestrian Bridge engineering and design $2,500

Materials

Private landowners Boulders 35.00                $300     10,500.00 

Equipment

Town of Paonia In-kind heavy machinery and Gravel 1,000.00             

USE OF FUNDS - IN-KIND SUBTOTAL $0.00 $1,000.00 $13,000.00

Contingency 10% (not required, cannot be 

GOCO funds) $0 $0

TOTAL PROJECT COST $135,230.00 $2,500.00 $56,700.00

Remember: the Total Project Cost row must equal the Total Source of Funds row above

2

76

15.



Total 

Funding ($)

$135,230.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$31,200.00

$12,500.00

$1,000.00

$10,500.00

$2,500.00

     195,430.00 

Total 

Funding ($)

$30,000.00

$80,000.00

$4,000.00

$2,000.00

$22,600.00

$13,400.00

$16,000.00

$6,215.00

$6,215.00

$180,430.00

Paonia River Park Community Access - Project Budget

3

77

15.



Total 

Funding ($)

$2,500.00

$10,500.00

$1,000.00

$14,000.00

$0

$194,430.00

Remember: the Total Project Cost row must equal the Total Source of Funds row above

4

78

15.



 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-13 

 
Supporting the Grant Application for a Local Parks and Outdoor Recreation Grant from the State Board of the 

Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund and the completion of Paonia River Park Community Access Project. 

 
WHEREAS, the Western Slope Conservation Center (WSCC) supports the Great Outdoors Colorado grant 

application for the Paonia River Park and Community Access project; and if the grant is awarded, the WSCC 

supports the completion of the project.  

 

WHEREAS, the WSCC has requested $135,230 from Great Outdoors Colorado to construct a new bridge and 

boulder classroom in the Paonia River Park. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE Town of Paonia and OF THE   WSCC THAT: 

 

Section 1: The Town of Paonia and the WSCC strongly supports the application, The Town of Paonia 

agreed to provide in-kind support, and WSCC has appropriated matching funds for a grant with 

Great Outdoors Colorado.  

 

Section 2:  If the grant is awarded, the Town of Paonia and the WSCC strongly supports the completion of 

the project.  

 

Section 3:  Town of Paonia and the WSCC authorizes the expenditure of grant provided funds necessary to 

meet the terms and obligations of the Grant awarded.  

 

Section 4:  The project site is owned by the WSCC and Town of Paonia and will be owned by the WSCC 

and Town of Paonia for the next 25 years. 

 

Section 5:  The WSCC and Town of Paonia recognizes that as the recipient of a Great Outdoors Colorado 

Local Government grant the project site must provide reasonable public access.  

 

Section 6: WSCC will continue to maintain the Paonia River Park Community Access Project in a high-

quality condition and will appropriate funds for maintenance in its annual budget. 

 

Section 7:  If the grant is awarded, the Town of Paonia hereby authorizes the Mayor of Paonia to sign the 

grant agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado. 

 

Section 8:  This resolution to be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Town 

of Paonia, Colorado, on this ____ day of ________2019. 

  

Attest: 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk    Charles Stewart, Mayor 

79

15.



 

October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Citizen Initiative - Water Tap Sale Moratorium 

Summary:   

First presentation of the citizen initiative to place a moratorium on water tap sales for the 

Town of Paonia. 

 

Notes: 

 

The citizen initiative petition for a proposed water tap moratorium was received and deemed 

sufficient to go before the Board of Trustees for review as of October 3, 2019. The total 

number of qualified signatures that that were required to obtain a statement of sufficiency was 

53.  Upon completion of the verification process 57 valid signatures were received. 

 

The Board of Trustees has twenty (20) days to make the determination to accept the proposed 

ordinance or to send to the voters via election.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

80

16.



81

16.



82

16.



83

16.



84

16.



85

16.



86

16.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

87

17.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Town Administrator Hiring Calendar  

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

88

18.



 Town Administrator Recruitment Calendar

A B C D E

Description Begin End Who Action

Review Calendar, Job Description and Plan PC Review

Appoint Interim Town Administrator           8/29/19 BD Appoint Corinne Ferguson

Present Recruitment Plan to the Board TA Approval

Advertise Position TA

        ICMA

        CML         

        Locally (DCI)

Deadline to Receive Appications

Application Review PC

Background Check TA

Announce Finalists

Set Interviews for Week of October 14

      Welcome to Town Staff

      Community & Facility Tour Staff Guided Tour

      Community Meet & Greet Public Hold Public Reception

Board Interiews BD Special Board Meeting

Board Decision BD

Extend Employment Offer BN

Negotiate Employment Contract BN

Notify Remaining Candidates of their Status TC

Board Approves Contract BD

Anticipated Start Date for New Town Administrator

     PC = Personnel Committee TC = Town Clerk

     BD = Town Board BN = Bo Nerlin, Town Attorney

     TA = Interim Town Administrator

89

18.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Public Works-Utilities-Facilities 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

90

19.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Governmental Affairs & Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

91

20.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Space 2 Create 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

92

21.



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION FORM 
(Note:  2/3 quorum present must vote yes; the session may only occur at a regular or special meeting of the body) 

 

 

I MOVE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

(if the stated purpose of the executive session is legal advice, do not combine it with any other 

purpose): 

 

 For a conference with the Town attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on 

specific legal questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b); 

 

 For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 

negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e); 

 

 To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other 

property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a); 

 

 For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not 

involving: any specific employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open 

session; any member of this body or any elected official; the appointment of any person 

to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or personnel policies that do not 

require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees; 

 

 For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or 

state law, rule or regulation: __________________ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c); 

 

 For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under 

C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(d); 

 

 For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory non-disclosure provisions of 

the Open Records Act under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g); 

 

 Other (specify):______________________________________________ 

 

Specific 

to:____________________________________________________________________for 

identification purposes only. 

93

22.



 

October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Executive Session – Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

94

22.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

95

23.



 

October 2, 2019 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY FORM 

 
 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2nd: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

96

24.


	Top
	. 2020 Budget
	ASF - Budget 2020

	. Executive Session - Staffing
	Exec SessionMotion

	. ASF 1 - Roll Call
	ASF 1 - Roll Call

	1. ASF 4 - Visitors & Guests
	ASF 4 - Visitors &amp; Guests

	2. Paonia Streetlights
	ASF - Paonia Streetlights
	Town OF Paonia street lights_DMEA
	Dark Skies
	Dark Skies Pamphlet

	3. Consent Agenda Items
	ASF 5 - Consent Agenda
	Regular Minutes - Septermber 24, 2019
	Liquor Modification

	4. ASF 6 - Mayor's Report
	ASF 6 - Mayors Report-Recognition

	5. Procedure for Filling Vacant Trustee Seat
	ASF 6 - Mayors Report-Vacancy
	Sec._2_2_10.___Board_of_Trustees__terms__authority__qualifications_and_vacancies.
	Statutory appointment

	6. ASF 7 -Administrator's Report
	ASF 7 -Administrator&#39;s Report

	7. Admin Report - Mapping RFP Modification
	ASF - Mapping to Asset Inventory

	8. Admin Report - Backflow Prevention
	ASF - Backflow

	9. ASF 8 -Public Works Report
	ASF 8 -Public Works Report

	10. ASF 9 -Police Report
	ASF 9 -Police Report
	blotter

	11. ASF 10 -Treasurer's Report
	ASF 10 -Treasurer&#39;s Report

	12. ASF 11 - Disbursements
	ASF 11 - Disbursements

	13. Library Update
	ASF - Delta County Libraries
	Library District Request to be on Agenda

	14. ASF - DeHerrera Minor
	ASF - DeHerrera Minor
	DeHerrera_Redacted

	15. WSCC GOCO Grant
	ASF - WSCC
	WSCC2019 LPOR Narrative and Questionairre Draft
	WSCC_GOCO LPOR Budget_WSCC
	WSCC - Resolution 2019-13 River Park Grant 

	16. Citizen Initiative - Water Tap Sale Moratorium
	ASF - Citizen Initiative 
	Citizen Initiative Proposed Ordinance

	17. ASF 12 -F&P
	ASF 12 -F&amp;P

	18. Town Administrator Hiring Calendar
	ASF - Admin Calendar
	Town Admin Recruitment Calendar - blank

	19. ASF 13 -PW-Utilities-Facilities
	ASF 13 -PW-Utilities-Facilities

	20. ASF 14 -Govt Affairs-PS
	ASF 14 -Govt Affairs-PS

	21. ASF 15 -S2C
	ASF 15 -S2C

	22. Executive Session - To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a)
	Exec SessionMotion
	ASF - S2C

	23. ASF 16 -Tree Board
	ASF 16 -Tree Board

	24. ASF 17 -Adjournment
	ASF 17 -Adjournment

	Bottom

